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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Boardroom,
Mezzanine Floor, Renaissance Harbour View Hotel, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Monday, May 27,
2002 at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes: —

Hong

Notes:

To receive and consider the audited financial statements, the report of the directors and the report of auditors
for the year ended December 31, 2001.

To declare a final dividend.
To re-elect directors and to fix the remuneration of directors.
To re-appoint auditors and to authorize the directors to fix their remuneration.

By Order of the Board
LEE Ka Sze, Carmelo
Secretary

Kong, April 22, 2002

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote
instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be valid, the form of proxy together with any power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a
notarially certified copy of that power or authority must be lodged with the registered office of the Company at Rooms
2802-2806, 28th Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours
before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

The register of members will be closed from Tuesday, May 21, 2002, to Monday, May 27, 2002, both dates inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar
and transfer office, Secretaries Limited, at 5th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, May 17, 2002.




CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the ‘‘Directors’”), I am pleased to present the annual report of the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2001.

RESULTS

The Group reported turnover of HK$1,168,244,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001, representing an increase
of 17% over the previous year. Profit attributable to shareholders for the year amounted to HK$140,006,000,
representing an increase of 74% as compared with the previous year. The growth in turnover and profit was a
combined result of our expanded production of 7-ACA series, the upturn in the market of penicillin series as well as
our efforts in controlling production costs.

DIVIDEND

The Directors recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK3.6 cents per share for the year ended December
31,2001 (2000: Nil)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Production and sales

All the production lines of the Group have attained full capacity in the year. The output of the three major series of
the Group has reached record high with equally strong sales figures. Products under the three major series have been
further diversified with as many as 15 products. Currently the sales of the Group are widely distributed with no
single product accounting for more than 20% of total sales, thus greatly minimizing the risk of the Group on the
reliance of a particular product.

Penicillin series

The output of penicillin for the year reached 2,787 tonnes, an increase of 12% over the previous year. Sales
increased by 19%, reflecting the increment of the product prices of the series. The series continued to be the largest

revenue contributor of the Group and accounted for 44% of the Group’s sales for the year.

We believe that the favourable market conditions of the series will sustain in the year 2002.




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

(cont’d)

7-ACA series

The output of 7-ACA for the year reached 295 tonnes, which is the first time for the output to reach the original
designed capacity. The output increased by 43% as compared with the previous year. The output of cefazolin, a
downstream product, reached 146 tonnes, an increase of 47% over the previous year. The sales of the series
increased by 53% as compared with the previous year, accounting for 30% of the Group’s sales. In addition, there
are a number of cephalosporin products under development, among which cefoperazone and cefradine have already

been put into production.

With the completion of the expansion project of the 7-ACA production lines during the year, the Group’s production
capacity of 7-ACA has reached 800 tonnes per annum. The Group has now become the largest manufacturer of
7-ACA in Asia as well as a major supplier of the product in the markets of China, East Asia and India. We believe
that with the expanded production capacity, our advantage in the market will be further strengthened and the series

will become the major source of the growth in the Group’s revenue and profit.

Vitamin C series

The output of vitamin C increased 7% to 11,222 tonnes this year, whereas product prices declined by approximately
20% on average. Sales decreased by 10% over previous year and contribution of the series to the Group’s sales was
furthered lowered to 25%. The market of the vitamin C products has been undergoing a profound consolidation.
The Company will monitor the development closely and act responsively to adjust the product mix in order to

minimize the impact of the market consolidation.

Product cost and profit margin

Through adopting effective cost control measures and making use of new technology and equipment, the costs of all
our products have been lowered by different degrees. Among which the cost of cefazolin has been lowered by 25%,
whereas the costs of 7-ACA, vitamin C and amoxicillin have been lowered by more than 10%. This reduction in
production costs coupled with the improved market conditions of 7-ACA and penicillin series enabled the Group to

attain a gross profit margin of 28%, an increase of 3% over last year.

Acquisition and disposal of assets

On April 22, 2002, the Company has entered into an agreement to acquire certain preparation production lines.
After completion of the acquisition, the Group’s product portfolio will diversify from bulk pharmaceutical products
to both bulk and preparation pharmaceutical products. With the additions of preparation products, the market realm
of the Group will be significantly expanded and that will be greatly beneficial to the development of new products in
the future. The acquisition will also strengthen the Group’s capital base and earning base and generate substantial

revenue.

The Group has disposed of its theobromine business during the year in order to eliminate its non-core loss-making

business.




CHAIRMAN"S STATEMENT
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(cont’d)

Development of new drug

The development of butylphthalide, a category one new drug in the PRC, by the Group has passed the third phase of
clinical trial. Application for approval has been made to the State Drug Administration. Due to the stringent
requirement for the approval of category one new drug, it is anticipated that approval for production will be obtained
in the second or third quarter of 2002. The Group has already been working on the establishment of the production
line for the product, so that the product could be introduced to the market once approval is obtained.

Outlook
In the year 2002, the Group will concentrate on:

1. Production and sale: Production of existing products will be maintained at full capacity, with focus on the
7-ACA series and other new products. With the expansion of the production capacity of the 7-ACA series, it
is believed that the turnover and profit of the Group for the year 2002 will have substantial increment.

2. Market expansion: More effort will be put to the market development of the preparation products in order to
swiftly secure a strong position in the new market realm. Once the approval is granted, butylphthalide will be
introduced to the market. It is hoped that satisfactory sales can be achieved from the new business in the year
2002.

3. Acquisition and development: The Group will closely look for good acquisition opportunities with a view to
expanding its asset and business base. At the same time, the Group is considering the possibility of
re-structuring a portion of its assets and business to be listed in the “*A Share’’ stock market in the PRC. The
Company will make announcement about the related development as and when appropriate.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

As at December 31, 2001, the Group’s total bank borrowings was HK$469 million, an increase of HK$26 million as
compared to HK$443 million at the last year end date, and the maturity profile spread over a period of four years
with HK$303 million repayable within 1 year and HK$166 million within 2 to 4 years.

Gearing ratio was 22%, which was calculated on the basis of the Group’s net bank borrowings (after deducting cash

and bank balances of HK$180 million) over shareholders’ funds at the year end date.

The majority of the Group’s bank borrowings, approximately 71% at the year end date, was in Renminbi with the
balance in Hong Kong dollars. As the Group derives its revenue mainly in Renminbi, its exposure to foreign
exchange rate fluctuations is not significant.

EMPLOYEES

At the year end date, the Group has approximately 4,310 employees, the majority of them are employed in the PRC.
They are remunerated at market level with benefits such as medical, retirement benefit and share option scheme.




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

The Directors proposes to increase the authorised share capital of the Company from HK$150,000,000 to
HK$300,000,000 by the creation of an additional 1,500,000,000 new shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the
Company so that a sufficient number of unissued shares are available for future purpose.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Directors, I would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere thanks to our shareholders for
their support and to our staff for their commitment and diligence during the year.

CAI Dong Chen

Chairman

Hong Kong, April 22, 2002
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the Vear ended December 31, 2001,
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to
the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2001, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
comprised approximately 39% of the Group’s total sales and the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
was approximately 14%, being sales to companies, other than members of the group, controlled by the Company’s
ultimate holding company, Shijiazhuang Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited (‘‘SPG’’).

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the
Group’s total purchases.

Other than SPG, none of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of the Company which, to the knowledge
of the directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any beneficial interest in the
customers mentioned above.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2001 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 17 of the annual report and the accompanying notes to the financial
statements.

The directors recommend a final dividend of HK3.6 cents per share.
RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred costs mainly for the construction of new factory buildings and plant and
machinery for the expansion of the production facilities of 7-ACA products and the refinement of production
facilities of cefazolin and 7-ACA products. Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, WARRANTS AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the issued share capital, warrants and share options of the Company are set out in notes 26,
27 and 28 to the financial statements, respectively.
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DIRECTCORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive directors:

Cai Dong (;hen, Chairman

Ding Er Gang
Wang Xian Jun

Wei Fu Min

LiuYi (appointed on February 22, 2001)
Qu Ji Guang (appointed on February 22, 2001)
Yue Jin (appointed on February 22, 2001)
Wei Guo Ping (passed away on March 19, 2002)

Independent non-executive directors:

Huo Zhen Xing
Lee Ka Sze, Carmelo
Qi Mou Jia

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association 101, Messrs. Cai Dong Chen, Wang Xian Jun and Qi Mou
Jia retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each independent non-executive director is the period up to his retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
CAI Dong Chen

Appointed as a director of the Company in 1998. Mr. Cai, aged 48, senior engineer, is the Chairman of SPG. Mr.
Cai graduated from Hebei Pharmaceutical Finance College, the People’s Republic of China (the ‘‘PRC’’) in 1972.
He joined Hebei Pharmaceutical Factory (‘‘HPF’’), the PRC in 1972 as a technician and was appointed factory
manager of HPF in 1984. Mr. Cai has over twenty years of management experience in the pharmaceutical industry.

DING Er Gang

Appointed as a director of the Company in 1997. Mr. Ding, aged 41, is an economist. He graduated from Hebei
College of Economic, the PRC and joined Hebei Province Municipal Planning Research Centre as an assistant
researcher. Mr. Ding is responsible for the overall financial management.

WANG Xiar Jun

Appointed as a director of the Company in 1994. Mr Wang, aged 39, is a senior engineer. He graduated from

Beijing Chemical Industrial College, the PRC in 1987 with a master degree in chemical engineering. Mr. Wang is
responsible for liaison with investors and intermediaries.

10




DIRECTORS® REPORT

(cont’d)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT - continued
WEI Fu Min -

Appointed as a director of the Company in 1994. Mr. Wei, aged 53, is a senior engineer. He graduated from Tianjin
Industrial College, the PRC in 1970. Mr. Wei has over twenty years of technical and management experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Wei is responsible for the overall technical and production control of the Group’s
production.

LIU Yi

Appointed as a director of the Company in 2001. Mr. Liu, aged 48, graduated from Beijing University, the PRC in
1980. Mr. Liu has over twenty years of management experience in the pharmaceutical industry.

QU Ji Guang

Appointed as a director of the Company in 2001. Mr. Qu, aged 47, has over twenty years of marketing and
management experience in the pharmaceutical industry.

YUE Jin

Appointed as a director of the Company in 2001. Mr. Yue, aged 38, graduated from Hebei University, the PRC in
1985. Mr. Yue has over fifteen years of product development and project management experience in the
pharmaceutical industry.

HUO Zhen Xing

Appointed as a non-executive director of the Company in 1994. Mr. Huo, aged 65, was the former head of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China, Hebei Province branch and Shijiazhuang sub-branch.

LEE Ka Sze, Carmelo

Appointed as a non-executive director of the Company in 1996. Mr. Lee, aged 42, is a solicitor by profession and is
a partner of a Hong Kong law firm.

QI Mou Jia

Appointed as a non-executive director of the Company in 1996. Mr. Qi, aged 68, is a senior engineer. He is a
former director of State Drug Administration of China (*‘SDA’’). He was the deputy chairman and chairman of
SDA in 1978 and 1982-1994 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at December 31, 2001, none of the directors or their associates had any personal, family, corporate or other
interest in the ordinary shares of the Company as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 29 of Hong Kong Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (the ¢*SDI Ordinance’’).

As at December 31, 2001, other than as disclosed in the section ‘‘Share Options’’, none of the directors, the chief
executives or their associates had any interests in the securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as defined in the SDI Ordinance and none of the directors or their spouses, or children under the age of 18, had any
right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.

11




DIRECTORS® REPORT

(comt’d)

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s Share Option Scheme (the ‘‘Scheme’’) was adopted on May 27, 1994 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees, and will expire on May 26, 2004. Under the Scheme, the
Company may grant to employees of the Group, including executive directors, options to subscribe for shares in the
Company for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share options granted. Option granted should be accepted
within 28 days from the date of grant, upon payment of the consideration. The subscription price, subject to
adjustment, is the higher of the nominal value of the shares and an amount which is based on 80% of the average of
the last dealt prices of the shares of the Company on the five trading days immediately before the option is granted.
Options granted are exercisable for a period to be notified by the board of directors to each grantee and in any event
such period of time shall not exceed a period of three years commencing on the expiry of six months after the date
on which the option 1s accepted and shall expire at the end of such three year period or May 26, 2004 whichever is
earlier.

At December 31, 2001, the number of shares in respect of which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Scheme was 94,784,000 representing 7.6% of the shares of the Company in issue at that date. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted cannot exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.

No employee shall be granted an option which, if exercised in full, would result in such employee becoming entitled
to subscribe for such number of shares as, when aggregated with the total number of shares already issued under all
the options previously granted to him which have been exercised, and, issuable under all the options previously
granted to him which are for the time being subsisting and unexercised, would exceed 25% of the aggregate number
of shares for the time being issued and issuable under the Scheme. During the year, the Company received HK$18
as consideration for share options granted.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options during the year and options outstanding at
the beginning and the end of the year:

Number of share options

Outstanding Granted Lapsed Outstanding

at during during at

Directors Date of grant  Exercisable period Exercise price 1.1.2001 the year the year  12.31.2001
Cai Dong Chen 10.31.1997 5.1.1998 to 4.30.2001 HK$0.81 1,450,000 - (1,450,000 -
3.27.2000 9.28.2000 10 9.27.2003 HK$0.62 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000

8.15.2001 2.16.2002 to 5.26.2004 HKS$0.61 - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000

Ding Er Gang 10.31.1997 5.1.1998 to 4.30.2001 HK$0.81 1,450,000 - (1,450,000) -
3.27.2000 9.28.2000 to 9.27.2003 HKS$0.62 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000

8.15.2001 2.16.2002 to 5.26.2004 HK$0.61 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000

Wang XianJun  3.27.2000 9.28.2000 to 9.27.2003 HKS$0.62 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
8.15.2001 2.16.2002 to 5.26.2004 HK$0.61 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000

Wei Fu Min 8.15.2001 2.16.2002 to 5.26.2004 HKS$0.61 - 4,304,000 - 4,304,000
LiuYi 2.19.2000 8.20.2000 to 8.19.2003 HKS$0.67 1,306,000 - - 1,306,000
8.15.2001 2.16.2002 to 5.26.2004 HK$0.61 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000

12




DIRECTORS' REPORT
(cont’d)
SHARE OPTIONS - continued
Number of share options
Outstanding Granted Lapsed Outstanding
at during during at
Directors Date of grant  Exercisable period Exercise price 1.1.2001 the year the year  12.31.2001
Qu Ji Guang 2.19.2000 8.20.2000 to0 8.19.2003 HKS$0.67 1,304,000 - - 1,304,000
8.15.2001 2.16.2002 to 5.26.2004 HK$0.61 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
Yue Jin 2.19.2000 8.20.2000 to 8.19.2003 . HKS$0.67 1,304,000 - - 1,304,000
8.15.2001 2.16.2002 to 5.26.2004 HK$0.61 -~ 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
26,814,000 24,304,000  (2,900,000) 48,218,000
Employees 10.31.1997 5.1.1998 to 4.30.2001 HK$0.81 25,100,000 - (25,100,000) -
2.19.2000 8.20.2000 to 8.19.2003 HKS$0.67 26,086,000 - - 26,086,000
8.15.2001 2.16.2002 to 5.26.2004 HKS$0.61 - 20,480,000 - 20,480,000
51,186,000 20,480,000  (25,100,000) 46,566,000
78,000,000 44,784,000  (28,000,000) 94,784,000

The fair value of the options granted in the current year totalled approximately HK$4,501,000. The following
significant assumptions were used to derive the fair values using the Black-Scholes option pricing model:

1)  anexpected volatility of 68%;

2) annual dividend of 30% of earnings; and

3)  Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes rates of 4.295% and based on the estimated expected life of 2.8 years.

No charge is recognised in the income statement in respect of the value of options granted during the year.
ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its holding companies or its
fellow subsidiaries or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo, a firm of solicitors of which Mr. Lee Ka Sze, Carmelo is a partner, rendered professional
services to the Group for which it received normal remuneration.

Other than the above, no contracts of significance subsisted at any time during the year to which the Company, its

holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly.

13




DiIRecTORS REPORT
(cont’d)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

As at December 31, 2001, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
16(1) of the SDI Ordinance shows that the following shareholder had an interest of 10% or more in the issued share
capital of the Company:

Number of ordinary Percentage of
Name of shareholder shares of the Company held  issued share capital
SPG 651,054,779 (Note) 52.49%

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other interests representing 10% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company as at December 31, 2001.

Note:  Out of the 651,054,779 shares, 25,000,000 shares are held by Mr. Ding Er Gang, an executive director of the Company, as
trustee for SPG, 16,729,762 shares are held by China Charmaine Pharmaceutical Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of SPG.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the discloseable connected transactions during the year are set out in note 40(I) to the financial

statements. In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors, the above transactions were entered into by

the Group:

(i)  in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business;

(ii) on normal commercial terms or on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the
Company are concerned; and

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such transactions or on terms no less favourable
than terms available to or from independent third parties.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

DISCLOSURE UNDER PRACTICE NOTE 19 TO THE LISTING RULES
Pursuant to a term loan agreement, it will be an event of default under the loan agreement if SPG ceases to own
more than 40% of the issued share capital of the Company. The outstanding principal of the term loan at December

31, 2001 was HK$135,000,000 and the last instalment repayment is due on May 21, 2005.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other events which are required to be disclosed by the Company under Practice
Note 19 to the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied throughout the year ended December 31, 2001 with the
Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

14
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(cont’d)

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT
Details of a significant post balance sheet event are set out in note 42 to the financial statements.
AUDITORS

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu have acted as auditors of the Company since the incorporation of the Company.
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint them.

On behalf of the Board
CAI Dong Chen

Chairman

Hong Kong, April 22, 2002

15




AUDITORS’ REPORT

2 BRSO ETE{S

Certified Public Accountants BSEPEBTZEEPINSR
26/F, Wing On Centre RKBZPIL 2688

111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHENA PHARMACEUTICAL ENTERPRISE
AND INVESTMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

FRNECKREARR T

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 17 to 52 which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditers

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view. In
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies
are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and to report our
opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of
the presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

Opinien

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group
as at December 31, 2001 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Techmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, April 22, 2002
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended December 31, 2001

NOTES 2001 2000
HK$’000 HK3°000
Turnover 1,168,244 995,096
Cost of sales (838,525) (747,722)
Gross profit 329,719 247,374
Other revenue 10,468 12,638
Distribution costs (25,694) (19,793)
Administrative expenses (101,173) (78,372)
Other operating expenses (9,377) (2,847)
Allowance for doubtful debts (9,600) (12,030)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment (3,543) (17,250)
Profit from operations 5 190,800 129,720
Finance costs (27,102) (29,843)
Impairment of goodwill of an associate (2,032) -
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary - (1,081)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 4,051 -
Share of loss of an associate - (290)
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 5,183 3,779
Profit before taxation 170,900 102,285
Taxation 8 (29,315) (21,364)
Profit before minority interests 141,585 80,921
Minority interests (1,579) (448)
Profit attributable to shareholders 140,006 80,473
Dividend 9 44,656 -
Earnings per share 10
Basic 11.29 cents 6.49 cents
Diluted 11.10 cents 6.40 cents
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At December 31, 2001

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment in a jointly controlled entity
Loan receivable

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Note receivables
Loan receivables
Trade receivables due from related companies
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity
Tax recoverable
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Taxation payable
Bank loans — due within one year

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Minority interests
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NOTES

11

12
15
17
18

19
20

21

40
40

22

23

2001 2000
HK3’000 HKS$’000
1,172,324 1,066,298

- 1,548
88,524 78,888
19,110 14,713

3,040 3,835

1,282,998 1,165,282
148,931 140,243
292,936 345,585
146,031 36,833

11,527 18,960
146,989 115,133
533 4,867
209 -
179,778 123,300
926,934 784,921
355,149 264,168
- 8,039
303,501 311,634
658,650 583,841
268,284 201,080

1,551,282 1,366,362

9,592 9,050




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(cont’d)
At December 31, 2001

NOTES 2001 2000
HKS$’000 HK3°000

Non-current liabilities
Subordinated loan from ultimate holding company 24 - 47,250
Loan from ultimate holding company 25 54,218 -
Bank loans — due after one year 23 165,830 131,652
220,048 178,902
1,321,642 1,178,410

Capital and reserves

Share capital 26 124,045 124,045
Reserves 29 1,197,597 1,054,365
1,321,642 1,178,410

The financial statements on pages 17 to 52 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
April 22, 2002 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cai Dong Chen Wang Xian Jun
Director Director
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BALANCE SHEET

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Investment in an associate

Current assets
Other receivables
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Bank loans — due within one year

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans — due after one year

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Cai Dong Chen
Director

At December 31, 2001

NOTES

11
13
14
16

23

23

26
29

Wang Xian Jun

20

Director

2001 2000
HKS$’000 HK$°000
1,194 1,427
484,225 394,421
690,182 701,339
- 2,322
1,175,601 1,099,509
511 911
3,267 429
3,778 1,340
9,925 10,652
8,323 19,892
22,491 53,074
40,739 83,618
(36,961) (82,278)
1,138,640 1,017,231
112,509 53,074
1,026,131 964,157
124,045 124,045
902,086 840,112
1,026,131 964,157



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 0F RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

For the year ended December 31, 2001

Net profit for the year and total recognised gains for the year
Goodwill arising on acquisition of an associate
eliminated against reserves

Prior year adjustment arising from the effect of a change
in accounting policy in respect of dividend recognition
(see note 2)

— increase in accumulated profits at January 1, 2000
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2001 2000
HKS$’000 HK$°000
140,006 80,473
- (2,032)
140,006 78,441

40,933




CONSOLIDATED CAsH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended December 31, 2001

NOTES 2001 2000
HKS$'000 HK3'000
NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 31 293,039 121,143
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE
Interest paid (25,915) (29,843)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders (917) (578)
Interest received 2,138 6,635
Dividends paid - (40,933)
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM RETURNS ON
INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE (24,694) (64,719)
CASH OUTFLOW FROM TAXATION
The People’s Republic of China income tax paid (36,777) (12,497)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (276,399) (127,634)
Development costs incurred {21,721) (4,892)
Purchase of technical know-how (3,170) -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash
and cash equivalents disposed of) 32 11,364 -
Repayment of loan receivables 7,433 4,676
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 5,472 1,435
Purchase of utility rights for electricity and steam - (4,041)
Investment in an associate - (2,322)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment - (1,548)
Cash outflow from dissolution of a subsidiary 33 - (1,405)
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (277,021) (135,731)
NET CASH OUTFLOW BEFORE FINANCING (45,453) (91,804)

22




CoNSOLIDATED CAsH FLow STATEMENT

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2001
NOTES 2001 2000
HKS$’000 HKS$000
FINANCING 34
Bank loans raised 493,653 400,281
Loan from ultimate holding company 100,992 -
Repayment of bank and other loans (492,714) (388,631)
Capital contribution from minority shareholders - 1,935
Proceeds from issue of shares for cash, net of expenses - 71
NET CASH INFLOW FROM FINANCING 101,931 13,656
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 56,478 (78,148)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT FORWARD 123,300 201,448
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED FORWARD,
REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH 179,778 123,300
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2001

GENERAL

The Company is a listed public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the **Stock Exchange’’).

The Company’s ultimate holding company is Shijiazhuang Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited
(“*SPG™’), a state-owned enterprise established under the laws of The People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC’"). SPG, together with the companies under its control other than members of the Group, will
hereinafter be referred to as the “*SPG Group”’.

The Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical products.
ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

In the current year, the Group has adopted for the first time a number of new and revised Statements of
Standard Accounting Practice (*°SSAPs’’) issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. Adoption of
these Standards has led to a number of changes in the Group’s accounting policies. The revised accounting
policies are set out in note 3. In addition, the new and revised Standards have introduced additional and
revised disclosure requirements which have been adopted in these financial statements. Comparative amounts
for the prior year have been restated in order to achieve a consistent presentation.

The adoption of the new and revised Standards has resulted in the following change to the Group’s accounting
policies that have affected the amounts reported for the current or prior periods.

Dividends proposed or declared after the balance sheet date

In accordance with SSAP 9 (Revised) Events after the Balance Sheet Date, dividends proposed or declared
after the balance sheet date are not recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date, but are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. This change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively, resulting
in a prior year adjustment. The effect of this change has been to increase the Group’s net assets at January 1,
2000 by $40,933,000.

Goodwill

In the current period, the Group has adopted SSAP 30 Business Combinations and has elected not to restate
goodwill previously eliminated against reserves. However, impairment losses in respect of goodwill that
arose between the date of acquisition of the relevant subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity and the
date of adoption of SSAP 30 have been recognised retrospectively. Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to
January 1, 2001 continues to be held in reserves and will be charged to the income statement at the time of
disposal of the relevant subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity, or at such time as further impairment
losses are identified.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after January 1, 2001 is capitalised and amortised over its estimated
useful life. Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after January 1, 2001 is presented as a deduction
from assets and will be released to income based on an analysis of the circumstances from which the balance

resulted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2001

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to December 31 each year.

The results of subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective

date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant inter-company transactions and balances within the Group have been eliminated on
consolidation.

Turnover

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, and is stated net of value-added tax and sales returns during the year.

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest rate
applicable.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost, as reduced by any identified
impairment losses.

Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition results of its associates
for the year. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates are stated at the Group’s share of the net
assets of the associates less any identified impairment loss.

When the Group transacts with its associates, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the relevant associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred.

The results of associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable

during the year. In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in associates are stated at cost less any
identified impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{cent’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2001

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and over which none of the participating parties has unilateral
control.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements which involve the establishment of a separate entity in which each venturer has an
interest are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are included in the consolidated balance sheet at the
Group’s share of the net assets of the relevant jointly controlled entities less any identified impairment loss.
The Group’s share of post-acquisition results of jointly controlled entities is included in the consolidated
income statement.

When the Group transacts with its jointly controlled entities, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant joint venture, except where unrcalised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.

Property, plant and equipment

Construction in progress is stated at cost which includes all construction costs and other direct costs, including
borrowing costs capitalised, attributable to such projects. Construction in progress is not depreciated until
completion of construction. Costs on completed construction works are transferred to the relevant category of
property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress is stated at cost less depreciation,
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment
other than construction in progress over their estimated useful lives, and after taking into account their
estimated residual value, using the straight line method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings in the PRC 3.3% - 5%
Plant and machinery 5% — 10%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The cost of land use rights is amortised on a straight line basis over the period of the rights.
Intangible assets
The cost of technical know-how is amortised on a straight line basis over its expected useful life of ten years.

The cost of rights to use utilities is amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives of ten
years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the vear ended December 31, 2001

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Research and development costs
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a clearly defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value ascribed to the Group’s share
of the separable net assets at the date of acquisition of a subsidiary and is written off to reserves immediately
on acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to January 1, 200] continues to be held in reserves, and will be charged
to the income statement at the time of disposal of the relevant subsidiary or at such time as the goodwill is
determined to be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions after January 1, 2001 is capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis
over its useful economic life. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate or a jointly controlled entity
is included within the carrying amount of the associate or jointly controlled entity. Goodwill arising on the
acquisition of subsidiaries is presented separately in the balance sheet.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the rates ruling on the dates of the transactions or at the
contracted settlement rate. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong

dollars are re-translated at the rates ruling on the balance sheet date. Profits and losses arising on exchange
are dealt with in the income statement.
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NoOoTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(cont’d)

For the vear ended December 31, 2001

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Foreign currencies — continued

On consolidation, the financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the applicable rates of exchange ruling on the balance sheet date as quoted by the
People’s Bank of China, the PRC. All exchange differences arising on consolidation are dealt with in
reserves.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are non-assessable or
disallowed. Timing differences arise from the recognition for tax purposes of certain items of income and
expense in a different accounting period from that in which they are recognised in the financial statements.
The tax effect of timing differences, computed under the liability method, is recognised as deferred taxation in
the financial statements to the extent that it is probable that a liability or an asset will crystallise in the
foreseeable future.

Borrowing cests

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits scheme contributions

The subsidiaries in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC
government and the retirement benefits scheme contributions charged to the income statement represent the
amount of contributions payable by the subsidiaries in the PRC to their retirement benefits schemes.

Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the

period of the relevant leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2001

SEGMENT INFORMATION

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the Group has determined business segments are
its primary reporting format and geographical segments are its secondary reporting format.

Business segments

The Group reports its primary segment information by products which are penicillin series, 7-ACA series,
vitamin C series and others. Segment information about these products is presented below:

2001
Penicillin 7-ACA Vitamin C
series series series Others Consolidated

HKS$'000 HK3'000 HK§'000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000
TURNOVER
Sales of goods 510,405 353,080 286,734 18,025 1,168,244
SEGMENT RESULT 108,855 103,276 822 (6,848) 206,105
Unallocated corporate expenses (15,305)
Profit from operations 150,800
Finance costs (27,102)
Impairment of goodwill of an associate (2,032)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 4,051
Share of profit of 2 jointly controlled entity 5,183
Profit before taxation 170,900
Taxation (29,315)
Profit before minority interests 141,585
Minority interests (1,579)

Profit attributable to shareholders 140,006

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and segment liabilities, analysed by
products:

Penicillin 7-ACA Vitamin C
series series series Others Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK3'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
ASSETS
Segment assets 816,398 665,271 686,127 12,446 2,180,242
Interest in a jointly controlled entity 19,110
Unallocated corporate assets 10,580
Consolidated total assets 2,209,932
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 136,345 102,456 110,564 377 349,742
Unallocated corporate liabilities 528,956

Consolidated total liabilities 878,698
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2001
4, SEGMENT INFORMATION — continued
Business segments — continued
2001 — continued
Penicillin 7-ACA Vitamin C
series series series Others Corporate Consolidated
HKS$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000
OTHER INFORMATION
Capital expenditure 30,080 232,849 28,928 10,611 110 302,578
Depreciation and amortisation 48,783 22,040 30,980 1,825 342 103,970
Impairment loss recognised - - 3,543 - - 3,543
Allowance for doubtful debts 3,133 2,167 4,300 - - 9,600
2000
Penicillin 7-ACA Vitamin C
series series series Others Conselidated
HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK3'000
TURNOVER
Sales of goods 428,798 230,793 317,677 17,828 995,096
SEGMENT RESULT 73,373 41,891 36,903 (14,301) 137,866
Unallocated corporate income 3,051
Unallocated corporate expenses (11,197
Profit from operations 129,720
Finance costs (29,843)
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary (1,081)
Share of loss of an associate (290)
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 3,779
Profit before taxation 102,285
Taxation (21,364)
Profit before minority interests 80,921
Minority interests (448)

Profit attributable to shareholders 80,473
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NOTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2001

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Business segments — continued

2000 - continued

(cont’d)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and segment liabilities, analysed by

products:

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interest in a jointly controlled entity
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION
Capital expenditure
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment loss recognised
Allowance for doubtful debts

Geographical segments

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC, Asia other than the PRC and others.

Penicillin
series
HK$'000

739,709

88,771

Penicillin
series

50,076
45,599

2,200

about the Group’s operations is presented below:

The PRC
Asia other than the PRC
Others

7-ACA
series
HKS$'000 HK$'000

50,635
19,147

31

7-ACA
series
HK$°000

375,541

53,411

Vitamin C
series
HK$'000

2,231
29,841
9,320
9,830

Vitamin C
series
HKS$'000

701,549

99,998

Others
HK3'000

40,175
864
7,930

Others
HK$°000

115,924

47,344

Corporate
HK$'000

1,184
147

Consolidated
HKS$'000

1,932,723
14,713
2,767

1,950,203
289,524
473,219

762,743

Consolidated
HK$'000

144,301
95,598
17,250
12,030

Segment information

Turnover
2001 2000
HKS$’000 HKS$ 000
868,203 755,159
157,378 122,892
142,666 117,045
1,168,244 995,096




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2001

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
Geographical segments — continued

Contribution to profit by geographical market has not been presented as the contributions to profit from each
market is substantially in the line with the overall Group ratio of profit to turnover.

Analysis of carrying amounts of segment assets and capital expenditure are not presented as over 90% of
amounts involved are in the PRC.

5. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

2001 2000
HK$’000 HKS$’000
Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging:
Amortisation of intangible assets included
in administrative expenses 15,255 13,250
Auditors’ remuneration
— current year 1,100 1,100
— underprovision in prior year - 80
Depreciation and amortisation 88,715 82,348
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3,596 25
Research and development expenses 267 1,284
Staff costs including directors’ remuneration 87,109 74,688
and after crediting:
Bank interest income 1,238 5,210
Interest income from loan receivables 900 1,425
6. FINANCE COSTS
2001 2000
HKS$’000 HK3'000
Borrowing cost 2,475 -
Interest paid on bank loans wholly repayable within five years 24,627 29,783
Interest paid to connected parties (note 40 (1)) 1,288 60
Total recognised finance costs 28,390 29,843
Less: interest capitalised in construction in progress (1,288) -
27,102 29,843
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the vear ended December 31, 2001
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
2001 2000
HKS$’000 HK3$'000
DIRECTORS
Directors’ fees:
Executive 160 100
Independent non-executive 120 120
280 220
Other emoluments of executive directors:
Salaries and other benefits 3,255 3,176
3,535 3,396

The emoluments of each of the directors were below HK$1,000,000 for each of the two years ended December
31,2001,

EMPLOYEES

Of the five highest paid individuals in the Group, two (2000: two) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are set out above. The aggregate emoluments of the remaining three highest paid individuals are

as follows:
2001 2000
HK$’000 HKS$°000
Salaries and other benefits 2,038 1,999

The emoluments of each of these employees were below HK$1,000,000 for each of the two years ended
December 31, 2001.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals, including

directors, as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of
the directors has waived any emoluments during the year.
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16.

NoTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2001
TAXATION
2001 2000
HKS3’000 HKS$'000
The charge comprises:
PRC income tax
— current year : 28,529 16,439
— underprovision in prior year - 2,251
Share of taxation of a jointly controlled entity 786 2,674
29,315 21,364

No Hong Kong Profits Tax is payable by the Company or its Hong Kong subsidiaries since they had no
assessable profit for the year.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are entitled to an
exemption from PRC income tax for the two years starting form their first profit-making year, followed by a
50% reduction for the next three years. The taxation charge has taken into account of these tax incentives.

The jointly controlled entity, which was established in the PRC, is also entitled to similar PRC tax relief as
the above subsidiaries.

Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets are set out in note 30.
DIVIDEND

A final dividend of HK3.6 cents (2000: Nil) per share has been proposed by the directors and is subject to
approval by the shareholders in general meeting.

During 2000, a final dividend of HK3.3 cents per share was paid in respect of the year ended December 31,
1999.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:

2001 2000
Profit attributable to shareholders HK$140,0606,000 HK $80,473,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of basic earnings per share 1,240,447,279 1,240,429,301
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
in respect of share options 20,934,321 16,000,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 1,261,381,600 1,256,429,301

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise of the Company’s then
outstanding warrants as the exercise price of those warrants was higher than the fair value of the shares
throughout the year ended December 31, 2000 and until the date of expiration of the warrants in October 2001.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2001
11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture,
Land use fixtures
rights in Buildings Plant and and office Motor Construction
the PRC  inthe PRC  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total

HKS$000 HKS$°000 HK$000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000

THE GROUP
COST
At January 1, 2001 23,725 156,457 1,118,432 1,414 14,256 24,314 1,338,598
Additions 1,871 323 6,407 163 2,041 266,882 277,687
Transfers - 59,336 {4,218) - 480 (55,598) -
Disposals - (4,522) (17,344) (24) (2,342) - (24,232
Disposal of subsidiaries - (23,179) (63,057) - - - (86,236)
At December 31, 2001 25,596 188,415 1,040,220 1,553 14,435 235,598 1,505,817
DEPRECIATION AND

AMORTISATION
At January 1, 2001 1,344 17,621 246,347 465 6,523 - 272,300
Provided for the year 1,233 6,857 77,800 294 2,531 - 88,715
Eliminated on disposals - (3,027) (11,275) - (862) - (15,164)
Eliminated on disposal

of subsidiaries - (2,034) (13,867) - - - (15,901)
Impairment loss - 548 2,995 - - - 3,543
At December 31, 2001 2,577 19,965 302,000 759 8,192 - 333,493
NET BOOK VALUE
At December 31, 2001 23,019 168,450 738,220 794 6,243 235,598 1,172,324
At December 31, 2000 22,381 138,836 872,085 949 7,733 24,314 1,066,298

The directors have reviewed the carrying value of property, plant and equipment of the Group at December 31,
2001. An impairment loss of HK$2,995,000 on plant and machinery has been recognised in the consolidated
income statement, representing the difference between the valuation under discounted cash flow method, using
a discount rate of 4.24%, and the carrying amount of the plant and machinery. The Group has also recognised
impairment loss of HK$548,000 on buildings with reference to the valuation made by Chesterton Petty
Limited, an independent firm of professional property valuers, on an estimated selling price.

Included in construction in progress was interest cost capitalised amounting to HK$1,288,000 (2000: Nil).

The land use rights and buildings in the PRC held by the Group at the balance sheet date are held under
medium-term leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2001
11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued
Furniture,
fixtures
and office Motor
equipment vehicles Total
HK§ 000 HK§'000 HK$'000

THE COMPANY
COST
At January 1, 2001 596 1,005 1,601
Additions 109 - 109
At December 31, 2001 705 1,005 1,710
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
At January 1, 2001 124 50 174
Provided for the year 141 201 342
At December 31, 2001 265 251 516
NET BOOK VALUE
At December 31, 2001 440 754 1,194
At December 31, 2000 472 955 1,427

12. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The deposits for the year ended December 31, 2000 were paid in connection with the expansion of the Group’s
production facilities in the PRC which were fully written off during the year.

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

2001 2000
HKS$’000 HK3’000
Unlisted investment, at cost 484,225 394,421

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at December 31, 2001 are set out in note 41.

14. AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due from subsidiaries are not expected to be repayable within one year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2001

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Technical Development Utility

know-how costs rights Total

HK§'000 HKS$°'000 HK3’000 HK3°000

COST
At January 1, 2001 47,097 20,367 51,795 119,259
Additions 3,170 21,721 - 24,891
At December 31, 2001 50,267 42,088 51,795 144,150
AMORTISATION
At January |, 2001 25,173 8,020 7,178 40,371
Provided for the year 5,292 4,783 5,180 15,255
At December 31, 2001 30,465 12,803 12,358 55,626
NET BOOK VALUE
At December 31, 2001 19,802 29,285 39,437 88,524
At December 31, 2000 21,924 12,347 44 617 78,888

The cost of technical know-how is amortised on a straight line basis over its expected useful life of ten years.

The cost of rights to use utilities is amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives of ten
years.

Development costs are deferred and written off, using the straight line method, over a period of three years
from date of commencement of commercial operation.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

THE COMPANY

2001 2000

HKS$’000 HKS$'000

Unlisted shares, at cost less impairment losses recognised - 2,322
Share of net assets of an associate - -
- 2,322

Details of the associate which was held directly by the Company at December 31, 2001 are as follows:

Proportion of
nominal value of

Place of issued capital held
Name of associate incorporation by the Company Principal activity
Rigg Far East Limited Hong Kong 30% Trading of pharmaceutical

products
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NoTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2001
17. INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
THE GROUP
2001 2000
HKS’600 HKS$’000
Share of net assets 19,110 14,713

At December 31, 2001, the Group held 50% of the registered capital of Hebei Huarong Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (*‘Huarong’’) which is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company established in the PRC to manufacture
and sell vitamin B12 products.

18. LOAN RECEIVABLE

The loan is unsecured, carries interest at 6.435% per annum and is repayable as follows:

THE GROUP
2091 2000
HK3’000 HKS$°000
Within one year 795 795
Between one to two years 795 795
Between two to five years 2,245 2,385
Over five years ~ 655
3,835 4,630
Less: Amount receivable within one year shown
under current assets (795} (795)
Amount receivable after one year 3,040 3,835
19. INVENTORIES
THE GROUP
2081 2000
HK3’000 HKS$000
Raw materials 41,853 36,751
Work in progress 56,560 51,453
Finished goods 50,518 52,039
148,931 140,243

Included in the above are work in progress of HK$9,095,000 (2000: Nil) and finished goods of HK$4,749,000
(2000: Nil) which were carried at net realisable value.
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22,

NOTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2001

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group has a policy of allowing a credit period from 90 days to 120 days to its trade customers. An aged
analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
0 to 90 days 163,153 162,975
91 to 180 days 22,656 66,154
181 to 365 days 8,617 45,020
194,426 274,149
Other receivables 98,510 71,436
292,936 345,585

LOAN RECEIVABLES
The loans are unsecured, carrying interest at 4.7% — 6.435% per annum and are repayable on demand.
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

An aged analysis of trade payables is as follows:

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$’000 HKS$'000
0 to 90 days 188,512 72,908
91 to 180 days 28,032 47,108
181 to 365 days 9,238 10,813
More than 365 days 24,123 23,377
249,905 154,206
Other payables 105,244 109,962
355,149 264,168
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24.

28.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2001

BANK LOANS

Bank loans

Analysed as:
Secured
Unsecured

The bank loans are repayable as follows:

Within one year or on demand
Between one to two years
Between two to five years

Less: Amount shown under
current liabilities

Amount due after one year

(cont’d)

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$'000
469,331 443,286 135,000 106,148
135,000 - 135,000 -
334,331 443,286 - 106,148
469,331 443,286 135,000 106,148
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HKS$000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$'000
303,501 311,634 22,491 53,074
88,948 131,652 44,982 53,074
76,882 - 67,527 -
469,331 443,286 135,000 106,148
(303,501) (311,634) (22,491) (53,074)
165,830 131,652 112,509 53,074

SUBORDINATED LOAN FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The loan was unsecured and interest-free. Repayment of the loan was subordinated to a bank loan. As the bank

loan was fully repaid during the year, an amount of HK$15,750,000 of the subordinated loan was also repaid
and the balance of HK$31,500,000 was disposed as part of the disposal of the subsidiaries as set out in note

32.

LOAN FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The loan is unsecured, carries interest at commercial rate and repayable in one lump sum in May 2006.
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27.

28.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2001
SHARE CAPITAL
Number
of shares Value
HKS$ 000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
Authorised:
At January 1, 2000, December 31, 2000
and December 31, 2001 1,500,000,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid: _
— balance at January 1, 2000 1,240,407,879 124,041
— exercise of warrants (note 27) 39,400 4
At December 31, 2000 and December 31, 2001 1,240,447,279 124,045

WARRANTS

In accordance with the conditions attaching to the Company’s warrants which were issued in 1999, the rights
to subscribe for new shares in the Company expired on October 20, 2001. During the year and prior to their
expiration, no warrantholders exercised their warrants.

During the year ended December 31, 2000, a total of 39,400 warrants were exercised by a warrantholder to
subscribe for 39,400 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at a subscription price of HK$1.80 per
share.

SHARE OPTIONS

At December 31, 2001, the following options to subscribe for shares were outstanding under the Company’s
share option scheme:

Number of

Exercise share option

Exercisable period price per share at 12.31.2001
HKS

8.20.2000 to 8.19.2003 0.67 30,000,000

9.28.2000 to 9.27.2003 0.62 20,000,000

2.16.2002 to 5.26.2004 0.61 44,784,000

94,784,000

No option was exercised during the year.

41




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2001
29. RESERVES
Non-
Share Goodwill  Translation distributable Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserves profits Total

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

THE GROUP
At January 1, 2000

- as originally stated 836,225 (169,047) 2,883 30,767 274,621 975,449

- prior year adjustment (note 2) - - - - 40,933 40,933

- as restated 836,225 (169,047) 2,883 30,767 315,554 1,016,382
Premium arising on exercise of warrants 67 - - - - 67
Goodwill of an associate - (2,032) - - - (2,032)
Goodwill realised on dissolution

of a subsidiary - 408 - - - 408
Transfers, net of minority interests’ share - - - 33,788 (33,788) -
Profit attributable to shareholders - - - - 80,473 80,473
Dividend (note 9) - - - - (40,933) (40,933)
At December 31, 2000 836,292 (170,671) 2,883 64,535 321,306 1,054,365
Impairment of goodwill of an associate - 2,032 - - - 2,032
Goodwill/reserve realised on

disposal of subsidiaries - 1,385 (190 - - 1,194
Share of non-distributable reserves

of jointly controlled entity - - - 3,505 (3,505) -
Transfers, net of minority interests’ share - - - 24,876 (24,876) -
Profit attributable to shareholders - - - - 140,006 140,006
At December 31, 2001 836,292 (167,254) 2,692 92,936 432,931 1,197,597

Reserves attributable to:

- Company and subsidiaries 836,292 (160,130) 2,585 89,431 418,908 1,187,086
- Associate - - - - (290) (290)
— Jointly controlled entity - (7,124) 107 3,505 14,313 10,801

836,292 (167,254) 2,692 92,936 432,931 1,197,597
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30,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2001
RESERVES - continued
Non-
Share Goodwill  Translation distributable Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserves profits Total

HKS$'000 HKS$°000 HKS000 HKS$'000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000

THE COMPANY
At January 1, 2000
— as originally stated 836,225 - - - 834 837,059
- prior year adjustment {note 2) - - - - 40,933 40,933
- as restated 836,225 - - - 41,767 877,992
Premium arising on exercise of warrants 67 - - - - 607
Profit attributable to shareholders - - - - 2,986 2,986

Dividend (note 9) - - - (40,933) (40,933)

At December 31, 2000 836,292 - - - 3,820 840,112
Profit attributable to shareholders - - - - 61,974 61,974
At December 31, 2001 836,292 - - - 65,794 902,086

The non-distributable reserves represent statutory reserves appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity under the PRC laws and regulations.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at December 31, 2001 represent its
accumulated profits of HK$65,794,000 (2000: HK$3,820,000).

UNRECOGNISED DEFERRED TAXATION

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax asset (liability) unrecognized (unprovided) are as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK8’000 HKS$°000

Taxation effect of timing differences
arising as a result of:

Tax losses available to set off against

future assessable profits 4,553 889
Excess of depreciation allowances

claimed for tax purposes over

depreciation charged in

the financial statements (113) (165)

4,440 724
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NoTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{(cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2001

30. UNRECOGNISED DEFERRED TAXATION - continued

The amounts of unrecognised (unprovided) deferred tax credit (charge) for the year are as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS’000 HK§°000

Tax losses available to set off against

future assessable profits 3,664 (38) 3,271 -
Excess of depreciation allowances

claimed for tax purposes over

depreciation charged in

the financial statements 52 (111 53 (101

3,716 (149) 3,324 (101)

The deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the financial statements as it is not certain that the benefit
will be realised in the foreseeable future.

31. RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION TO NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES
2001 2000
HKS$’000 HK3'000
Profit before taxation 170,900 102,285
Share of loss of an associate - 290
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity (5,183) (3,779)
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary - 1,081
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries {4,051) -
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 3,543 17,250
Written off of deposit paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment 1,548 -
Impairment of goodwill of an associate 2,032 -
Allowance for doubtful debts 9,600 12,030
Interest expenses 24,627 29,843
Interest income (2,138) (6,635)
Depreciation and amortisation 88,715 82,348
Amortisation of intangible assets 15,255 13,250
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3,596 25
Decrease in refundable input value-added tax recoverable - 1,216
Increase in inventories (18,883) (15,219)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables 35,528 (23,552)
Increase in note receivables (109,198) (36,833)
Increase in trade receivables due from related companies (31,856) (7,588)
Decrease in amount due from a jointly controlled entity 4,334 -
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables 104,670 (43,740)
Decrease in amount due to a jointly controlled entity - (1,129)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 293,039 121,143
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32.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2001

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Net assets disposed:

Property, plant and equipment

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Bank balances and cash

Trade and other payables

Subordinated loan from ultimate holding company
Bank borrowings — due within one year

Minority interests

Goodwill realised on disposal
Translation reserve realised on disposal
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Satisfied by:

Cash consideration

2001
HKS$’000

70,335
10,195
7,521
4,777
(12,894)
(31,500)
(37,418)
(120)

(cont’d)

2000
HK$'000

10,896

1,385
(191)

4,051

16,141

16,141

Analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in connection with the disposal of subsidiaries:

Cash consideration received
Bank balances and cash disposed of

2001 2000
HK$000 HKS$°000
16,141 -
(4,777) -
11,364 -

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year did not contribute significantly to the Group’s cash flow and

operating results.

45




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2001
33. DISSOLUTION OF A SUBSIDIARY
2001 2000
HKS’000 HK3$'000
Net assets of subsidiary at dissolution:
Trade and other receivables - 1,171
Bank balances and cash - 1,405
Other payables - (1,903)
- 673
Goodwill realised on dissolution of a subsidiary - 408
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary - (1,081)
The cash outflow arising from dissolution of a subsidiary - (1,405)

The subsidiary which was dissolved during the year ended December 31, 2000 did not have any significant
impact on the Group’s cash flows and operating results.

34. ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN FINANCING DURING THE YEAR

Suberdinated
loan from  Loan from
ultimate ultimate
Share Share holding holding Minority
capital premium  Bank loans company company interests

HES$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$°000 HK3°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000

At January 1, 2000 124,041 836,225 431,636 47,250 - 7,245
Exercise of warrants 4 67 - - - -
New bank loans raised - - 400,281 - - -
Repayment of bank loans - - (388,631) - - -
Capital contributed by

minority shareholders - - - - - 1,935
Share of profits by

minority shareholders - - - - - 443
Dividends paid to minority

shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - (578)
At December 31, 2000 ) 124,045 836,292 443,286 47,250 - 9,050
New bank loans raised - - 493,653 - - -
Borrowings raised - - - - 100,992 -
Repayment of bank and other loans - - (430,190) (15,750) (46,774) -
Share of profits by minority shareholders - - - - - 1,579
Dividends paid to minority

shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - 917
Disposal of subsidiaries - - (37,418} (31,500) - (120)
At December 31, 2001 124,045 836,292 469,331 - 54,218 9,592
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37.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2001

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year, a dividend receivable of approximately HK$4,911,000 from the Company’s jointly controlled
entity was capitalised as additional investment in that jointly controlled entity.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HKS$’000 HK$°000
Minimum lease payments paid under
operating lease during the year
in respect of land and buildings 6,178 6,276

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

2001 . 2000
HKS$’000 HKS$ 000
THE GROUP
— within one year 5,995 5,413
— in the second to fifth year inclusive 1,998 1,943
7,993 7,356
THE COMPANY
— within one year 1,310 728
— 1in the second to fifth year inclusive 764 -
2,074 728

Significant portion of future minimum lease payments fall due within one year as the major lease entered into
by the Group can be terminated by giving twelve months notice to the landlord.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following capital commitments:

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$’000 HKS$°000
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided
in the financial statements in respect of acquisition
of property, plant and equipment 108,914 53,739

The Company had no capital commitment at the balance sheet date.
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40.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2001

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At December 31, 2001, the Company had given a corporate guarantee of HK$23,220,000 (2000:
HK$23,220,000) to a bank to secure general banking facilities granted to a subsidiary of the Company.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of retirement benefits schemes operated by the
PRC government.

The relevant subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the state retirement schemes in the PRC based
on 20% of the monthly salaries of their current employees to fund the benefits. The employees are entitled to
retirement pension calculated with reference to their basic salaries on retirement and their length of service in
accordance with the relevant government regulations. The PRC government is responsible for the pension
liability to these retired staff. During the year, the contributions made by the PRC subsidiaries relating to the
arrangement were approximately HK$13,646,000 (2000: HK$9,284,000).

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

During the year, the Group had significant transactions and balances with related parties, some of which are
also deemed to be connected parties pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange. The significant transactions with these companies during the year, and balances with them at the

balance sheet date, are as follows:

(I) CONNECTED PARTIES

Nature of transactions/ THE GROUP

Name of company balances 2001 2000

HK$’000 HK$§'000

SPG Group Sale of finished goods 162,532 153,980
(note a)

Purchase of raw materials 24,656 40
(note a)

Service charges payable 5,026 7,142

relating to administrative, selling,
utility, energy, community,

land use rights and

other supporting services

and facilities (note b)

Management fee income 102 184
(note ¢)
Commission income (note d) - 211
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NOTES ToO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2001
40. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES - continued
(I) CONNECTED PARTIES - continued
Nature of transactions/ THE GROUP
Name of company balances 2001 2000
HKS$’000 HK$°000
SPG Group Interest expenses on loan from 1,288 -
ultimate holding company (note e)
Interest expenses on - 60
non-trade payables (note f)
Proceeds from disposal of buildings 1,554 -
to the SPG Group (note g)
Guarantee given by SPG Group 150,000 95,416
(note h)
Balance due from (to) the
SPG Group at December 31
— trade receivables 146,989 115,133
— subordinated loan (note 1) - (47,250)
— long term loan (note e) (54,218) -
Minority shareholder Consuitancy fee paid - 1,936
of a subsidiary (note j)
(II) RELATED PARTIES, OTHER THAN CONNECTED PARTIES
Nature of transactions/ THE GROUP
Name of company balances 2001 2000
HKS$’000 HK3'000
Huarong, a jointly Purchase of raw materials 31,326 19,254
controlled entity (note a)
of the Group Dividend income (note k) 4,911 2,747
Balance due from (to)
Huarong at December 31
— dividend receivable - 2,747
— non-trade receivable (note 1) 5,401 5,117
— trade payable (4,868) (2,997)
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NoTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{cont’d)

For the year ended December 31, 2001

The transactions were carried out with reference to market prices.

Pursuant to service agreements entered into by the Group and the SPG Group, the Group paid service charges
to the SPG Group based on the nature and the actual amount incurred on services provided by the SPG Group
to the Group.

Pursuant to service agreements entered into by the Group and the SPG Group, SPG Group paid management
fee to the Group based on 2% of the actual energy cost incurred as handling charges.

The transactions were carried out at a range of 0.75% to 12% charged on turnover.

The SPG Group made a long term loan advance to a subsidiary of the Group during the year. The loan
carried interest at bank borrowing rate as quoted by the People’s Bank of China.

The SPG Group made non-trade advances to the Group during the year ended December 31, 2000 which were
fully settled in the same year. These advances carried interest at 7% per annum.

On December 27, 2001, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Vitam Pharmaceutical (Shijiazhuang)
Co., L1d., entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement with SPG, for the disposal of certain factory buildings
at Zhong Shan Xi Road, Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province, the PRC. The consideration for the disposal was
RMB1,649,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,554,000) which was equivalent to the value of these
disposed buildings as valued at December 21, 2001 by Chesterton Petty Limited, an independent firm of
professional property valuers, on an open market value basis.

During the year, the SPG Group has given corporate guarantee of HK$150,000,000 to a bank to secure a bank
loan granted to the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2000, the SPG Group had given corporate guarantee of HK$95,416,000
to banks to secure bank loans granted to a subsidiary of the Group.

The loan was unsecured and interest-free. Repayment of the loan was subordinated to a bank loan. As the
bank loan was fully repaid during the year, an amount of HK$15,750,000 of the subordinated loan was also
repaid and the balance of HK$31,500,000 was disposed as part of the disposal of the subsidiaries as set out in
note 32.

The transaction was carried out in accordance with the joint venture agreement entered into by the Group and

the minority shareholder of a subsidiary.

Dividend receivable from the jointly controlled entity was capitalised by the Group as additional investment
in the jointly controlled entity.

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

In addition, a new waiver was granted by the Stock Exchange on February 6, 2002 in respect of certain

ongoing connected transactions between the Group and the SPG Group. Further details are set out in
note 42.
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41.

NoTEs To THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2001

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of subsidiaries at December 31, 2001 are as follows:

Name of
subsidiary

China Antibiotic
Pharmaceutical
Corporation Limited

China Nutraceuticals
Limited

Golden Wing Limited

Hebei Zhonghe

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Hebei Fenghua
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Hebei Zhongkang
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Hebei Zhongrun
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

M2b.com.hk Limited

Netcom Resources Limited

Shijiazhuang Jiali
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Tin Lon Investment Limited

Unity Pacific Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and
operations

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

British Virgin

Islands

British Virgin
Islands

PRC

Hong Kong

British Virgin
[slands

Nominal
value of
issued/
registered
capital

US$12,000

HK$1,000

HKS$3

RMB76,000,000

U5$3,000,000

RMB180,000,000

RMB97,880,000

1S5§2,500,000

US$1,000

RMB20,000,000

US$1

51

Percentage of
nominal value
of issued share
capital held
by the Company
Directly Indirectly
% %

100 -

100 -

99 -

99 -

26 73

99 -

100 -

99 -

100 -

100 -

(cont’d)

Principal
activity

Inactive

Manufacture and sale
of nutraceutical
products

Trading of
pharmaceutical products

Manufacture and sale
of pharmaceutical products

Manufacture and sale
of pharmaceutical products

Manufacture and sale
of pharmaceutical products

Manufacture and sale
of pharmaceutical products

Inactive

Investment holding

Manufacture and sale
of pharmaceutical products

Investment holding

Investment holding



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2001
41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Place of Neminal Percentage of
incorporation/ value of neminal value
registration issued/ of issued share
Name of and registered capital held Principal
subsidiary - operations capital by the Company activity
Directly Indirectly
% %
Vitam Pharmaceutical PRC US$5,270,000 100 - Inactive
(Shijiazhuang) Co., Ltd.
Weisheng Pharmaceutical PRC US$14,899,000 100 - Manufacture and sale
(Shijiazhuang) Co., Ltd. of pharmaceutical products
Zhongxing Pharmaceutical PRC RMB96,000,000 100 - Manufacture and sale
(Shijiazhuang) Co., Ltd. of pharmaceutical products

None of the subsidiaries had any debt capital outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
42. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On February 26, 2002, a new waiver was granted by the Stock Exchange in respect of the ongoing connected

transactions between certain members of the Group and the SPG Group. The new waiver was to replace the

existing waiver which was previously granted by the Stock Exchange on July 29, 1999.

Details of these ongoing connected transactions were disclosed in the Company’s circular to shareholders

dated February 6, 2002, and were approved by shareholders in an extraordinary general meeting held on
February 26, 2002.
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FiNANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS

TURNOVER

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

FINANCE COSTS

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL
OF AN ASSOCIATE

LOSS ON DISSOLUTION
OF A SUBSIDIARY

GAIN ON DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES

SHARE OF LOSS OF
AN ASSOCIATE

SHARE OF PROFIT OF A JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITY

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

TAXATION

PROFIT BEFORE MINORITY
INTERESTS

MINORITY INTERESTS
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO

SHAREHOLDERS

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES
MINORITY INTERESTS

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

Year ended December 31,

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
HKS$'000 HKS$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
525,092 596,342 821,321 995,096 1,168,244
114,709 124,174 166,751 129,720 190,800
(25,009) (21,304) (29,407) (29,843) (27,102)
- - - - (2,032)

- - - (1,081) -

- - - - 4,051

- - - (290) -

2,196 5,657 7,210 3,779 5,183
91,896 108,527 144,554 102,285 170,900

- 6,029 1,072 21,364 29,315

91,896 102,498 143,482 80,921 141,585
991 1,059 1,460 448 1,579
90,905 101,439 142,022 80,473 140,006

At December 31,
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
HKS$°000 HK3’000 HK3°000 HK$°000 HK§’000
(as restated) (as restated) (as restated)

1,305,949 1,502,853 1,943,132 1,950,203 2,209,932
592,961 708,986 795,464 762,743 878,698
2,951 4,954 7,245 9,050 9,592
710,037 788,913 1,140,423 1,178,410 1,321,642
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FiNaNnciaL SUMMARY
(cont’d)

TURNOVER TREND
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MuEEz

®iE
BEZE+_BE=+—HIt¥E
—AAEE —AANE —AAIE _RBEZRE __BB—F

FHET FHET FHET FHTT F&ETT
B¥ER 525,092 596,342 821,321 995,096 1,168,244
REMF 114,709 124,174 166,751 129,720 190,800
M%ER (25,009) (21,304) (29,407) (29,843) 27,102)
BENAZEERE - - - - (2,032)
BHM B SRS - - - (1,081) -
HEM B RAiE - - - - 4,051
BLHE N REE ~ - - (290) -
EBiEE&EAERR 2,196 5,657 7,210 3,779 5,183
BRI 91,896 108,527 144,554 102,285 170,900
BiIE -~ 6,029 1,072 21,364 29,315
BAOSRRERS AR

91,896 102,498 143,482 80,921 141,585
DEEREER 991 1,059 1,460 448 1,579
BREGTEH 90,905 101,439 142,022 80,473 140,006
BERER

w+—_A=+—8
—hAEE —ARNE —AAAE —“BESE “BE—&
FHET FH#T FHT FHETT F&ET
(EFFIE) (BEFHFIE) ( EFFIE)

mEE 1,305,949 1,502,853 1,943,132 1,950,203 2,209,932
= y= iy 592,961 708,986 795,464 762,743 878,698
DERRRRERS 2,951 4,954 7,245 9,050 9,592
BEES 710,037 788,913 1,140,423 1,178,410 1,321,642
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41.

42.

Mugxrua

(&)
BE_FF-F+_A=1+—-HIFE

MEBABEE (&)

M / B NG TiE S

RigR ST/ M ERTRA

FrE RAEE BBz TERE
WEBLARER Hi M

% %

HoZEE (ARE) HE 5,270,000 37T 100 - BEB
BRAF
MAZER (GRE) FH 14,899,000 37T 100 - LERHE
ARAF HBEER
hREE (BFRHE ) aalc ABHE 96,000,000 75 100 - BERAE

AR HBEM

EMBLARNERRAEERTARERECFAREEEEEREX -
HERKER

REBB-FAZTRE  BXHEMRAEERETARRLBEE - EETZREL S ZF
BE - HRFEEBRABZHIR—AANF LA TABREZRTHR -

—HETZHEZEFBEN _ER _F_ARERAREREERY  YER-FFE_F_A=-+
REBTZREER KRG LB RS -
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Muaxma

(&)
BE_BE—F+ - H=EF—HILEE
41. MBAERE
REBR-F T f=1T—HBZWBLTEHEBNT:
i/ B A AR
RigE BT/ S BHITRA
Frett RAEE EEZ L E ITEER
gy S ' HE 5823
% %
China Antibiotic HeEE 12,000 T 100 - EBEH
Pharmaceutical
Corporation Limited
FERAREY "t 1,000 #7C - 80 BERHE
HBEAF RARBYER
SHEARATE B 3BT 100 - UBERES
AP RUBER LA 2 AR 76,000,000 1T 99 - HERHE
HBER
B ENBERAT R 3,000,000 £ 99 - SERME
BEER
AR nEEERAT FE AE® 180,000,000 T 26 73 kR e
UBER
it EHBER LT FE AR 97,880,000 7T 99 - LERRE
HEEL
M2b.com.hk Limited EBRTESE 2,500,000 £ 7T - 90 BEH
Netcom Resources Limited EBRTEE  1,000ET 100 - BEER
BEFREEHNE FH AE# 20,000,000 T 99 - WERHE
HERAF WEESR
Rk EEBR AT -3 2HET 100 - BEER
Unity Pacific Limited EBRTES 1ET 100 - BEER
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Bt % % = W
BE_FEE A F=1+—HIEFEE

40. FERMBMALTZZHRER (&)

i

(2)

(b)

(©

(d)

®

(2)

(b

@

@

(k)

M

st

FLbftEE 42 ©

SXHTIEBHRMES -

%

BEAEEREGBRBEFT v ZMBHH 2 EEARBLREEEM A RERERB 2 EEAREEZ TR
BHOAEEETRBE -

REFAEEALTEEHTVZRBHE  tBLEERBELERBEERERS 2% (FRTFHEE ) A
FEEZNTERE -

DETETEEREZ 0.75% % 12% &l -

£ AEEEANLEE-FNBLFBERAER - BREBIFEIETBEARBTHH BT
EHRFRGE -

|

FREERBEFZERRETAS T B LEFERKTALEEZIEZBHNRAERNBBEGE - 3
SFBEFIBTIEER 7 EftE -

§||

WBEB—EFE+_F-++tEB  ALFEZ2EMBARMEEE ( AFH ) ERAFHEARE LRI
EEFS HEETHAATETLEEREPLUARCERE - HERBEBARY 1,649,000 T ( 55
1,554,000 %70 ) » HER BB EGHEAFTEBMTARATKAKMTEARKSFHESRF
WoRBBE-F+ A+ —BoEE-

ER o GEEEHCORBTALTZ ST SRS TREE 150,000,000 i%fczﬁﬁlﬁf(% @

BE_FEBF+_A=+—HLEER RELEHERB TAEENBAT BT R EETRE
95,416,000 Tz L TIEE -

FHERTEEFALZE - BHEFREXVEBR —HATENK - BRUAATERCRAEERE
BEE  RERE B RIRE 15,750,000 # T Z 3R SR 0 MEREE 31,500,000 # TERE K &I B L
EmEY  FRME32

ZHETIRBAEBRA—HTBATRZPBRFEFI I Z 68 BaEET -
FHECHENAELXEZREFEAL  LEMRSELRZEZE -

SREFHRLEER RE > AEAREER -

TR BB E - AR HERRALBR LT BEEE T -EETZHELHEZTHE  #1%
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Mueaxms

(#)
HE_EBEFE—FEF+_A=+—HI-EEF
40. FRERRMBMATZXEIRER (&)
o BFEAL (&)
EEE
YACIE% " THME / Gtk —EBE—-f “RBEFE
F#ET FHT
GEER ERIZER AT B 1,288 -
FIEaxH (e )
EMAEE BT EBZFETH - 60
(MEE )
REREEEHEBETKE 1,554 -
(Mt g)
AEEERFEZER 150,000 95,416
(FftEEh) -
R+ BA=+—HEKR ()
BHEEE F
- EWE 5#%E 146,989 115,133
- BESEH (M) - (47,250)
- RGBS (WEe) (54,218) -
MBARZ L EEE B ERE - 1,936
(FHEEj)
(an FEEA LM Z BREEA L
EEE
NAIBE THHE /i ZHEE—F CERETE
F#T F#TT
S (FEEZEELE) BRERME 31,326 19,254
(Fizta)
iR A (MiEEk) 4,911 2,747
R+ A=+—EEKR ()
E A
- B R - 2,747
- EBWIEE 5 E
(HEE) 5,401 5,117
- ENEBEFE (4,868) (2,997)
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38.

39.

40.

Medxuas
BE-FF— = A=+—HILEE

(%)

RARR

REFBB—F+A=+—80 » FRFERKTALFMBLEZ —RE KEEHTHERE 23,220,000
T ( ZFEBFRFE 23,220,000 #T ) 22 FHER -

B BB phE TR

FEERFAEETREZAERERAFERTGARHGHE  SHBHZEERFEERESB » D&
eHWAFE  KXERXAETHE -

FERMBATZEERTEEFFNEEZBARBFFHEIZKE -
EHMBATIRENETR zEFERTBIFHES  MEFXTTHEREEGRZMBATIRERA
BEZ 20% ZREHMBUTHG  HLEREEBEFEARETIBEIERBEZTFEERBELNFHE - F
EEREAEHSEABEZRERKS A -EAEER FEMBAFARARETHZHEFHE
13,646,000 % T ( “EEREE : 984,000 HTT ) o

PEREMBA L2 X B R

REFER  *EEERBAL ( RERLHAES LHRA ETHRALSERRMEAL ) FE
REHRAERR - FRARFELFZERL S  URPRHERRBEZHBARWT ¢

M BEATL
F&EH
NGBS THME /Gt “EE—-£ —EEEE
F#ET FHEETT
REER HERR S 162,532 153,980
(MtEta)
BEEA 24,656 40
(MigEa)
FA BT - HE - KE - 5,026 7,142
BEUR ~ THEE - LHF AR
HMEEHREREE BB
(MtEEDb)
BFEEBRIA 102 184
(MigEc)
P& A - 211
(BfEEQ)
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e rma
BEFE— o A=t —HILFE

35. APREZEXRTE
FR ALFERAEELEZRE 4,911,000 BELEIFEARL  LEBMRZABLXZEE -

36. KERHEIE

—EBF—-5 “EBERE
F#TT F#T

EARBIMEEFZRERY
BffZz REHE&H 6,178 6,276

REED  REBETATHGHEEHEOAEERARXFREAZAN THIRREEZ ZERSABWT ¢

—BE-£ ZEEFF

F#ET FHTT
F%HE
_ —FA 5,995 5,413
- RE-FEERFEN
(ERMEEEEA) 1,998 1,943
7,993 7,356
b /N
- —ER 1,310 728
- RE_EEREN
(HEREREERN) 764 -
2,074 728

RAFET 2 TERGTRAEFLEFEH - EABHAMK L ERXRERSBERPEATHN—FEA
F -

37. BFXEiE

WREEBR  AEEZEAREBWNT -

A4
—BS—& —FEEF
FHT FHT
FHERYE - BELRFBOFHAERE
MEHREPBHEZBAMX 108,914 53,739

RHEER » ARF L BB RERE -
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B %8 & M
BE-FF 5+ A=+—AILFE

33. FEHEMBAR

—8T-5 —RERE

F#T FH#T

BB s PR LR HEE S
FEWE & EREE A TR - 1,171
BITREBREE & - 1,405
HAFE A ROE - (1,903)
- 673
HEHBARBR L EE - 408
FREH B A FIEE - (1,081)
M BATRLEZHE - (1,405)

RBE_BZFE+_A=+—-A LFERREZHBLRLSHALE R ME R & FEFER
EREREE -

4. EAREEHZHH

B
BRAE BEER DR
BE  ROEBEE  BROER ZHHEER QP8R BREH
FET T#T THT FET TET FET

R_FEHFHEFE—H—A 124,041 836,225 431,636 47,250 - 7,245
TERRER 4 67 - - - -
FEETER - - 400,281 - - -
HRETEX - - (388,631) - - -
PEERERFEE - - - - - 1,935
PR FETGEEF - - - - - 448
B BLF S B ERE - - - - - (578)
R-BBERE+_A=+—H 124,045 836,292 443 286 47,250 - 9,050
BT HR - - 493,653 - - -
RS - - - - 100,992 -
HRETERRABEK - - (430,190) (15,750) (46,774) -
DR E TSR R - - - - - 1,579
EMMBAT I BBERE - - - - - ©17)
BB A= - - (37,418) (31,500) - (120)
R-BE—&E+-A=+—8H 124,045 836,202 469,331 - 54,218 9,592
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32. HEMBAS

HEBERE :

Y3k - B RERIE

TR
BWE 5 RRE R R
BRITREFLEBRS
FEATE SRR R H AR
BT AT 2 R AR
BT - —FREM
PEREEE

HEFTER B8
HERTE R E R
HEWBA TR E

BN v

HefE

%8k

BE_FEFE-FIT - A=+—HIFE

FRHLEMBARZRGRESSHERABET T

ElHRENE
HERTRFLRRS

REAHEZMBATIHAREZRGMBERRELBLREATR
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(%)

—FFE-F
FET

70,335
10,195
7,521
4,777
(12,894)
(31,500)
(37,418)
(120)

EERFE
FH#ETT

10,896

1,385
(191)

4,051

16,141

16,141

“BE—£
FH#TT

16,141
@,777)

_EBRE
FHEITT

11,364




31.

Bt %8 %M

()
BE_FEFE—FES - f=+—HIFFEE
30. RERZIRERIE (&)
REERER ( KBH ) CRERTHER () BENT :
TEE VN
—BEF £ —EERE —FE—= TEBRE
F#T FHT F#IT FHET
TESEBETREN REER 3,664 (38) 3,271 -
SR ITEEHEER
MBRERNRZITE 52 (111) 53 (101)
3,716 (149) 3,324 (101)
BERBEESHEHRTHREBAAFRABRER  WEEUBHEET -
BRERINEFEREEEEEZHEMNERZHER
—ET-& —BEES
FET FHET
B B RTE F 170,900 102,285
FE{L 5 2 = 5 1R - 290
(5B LFERF (5,183) (3,779)
FRERH B A F B 1R - 1,081
HEMBATIKE (4,051) -
¥~ BB ZRFEZREBRE 3,543 17,250
BHEABEREDE - BERREZTTS& 1,548 -
BN HRRE 2,032 -
SRR 9,600 12,030
FIE 24,627 29,843
FILE B A (2,138) (6,635)
B R s 88,715 82,348
B EERNA 15,255 13,250
HEDE - - BRRBHEZER 3,596 25
B U [0 3 TSR (E R R A - 1,216
TR Em (18,883) (15,219)
FEME 5 Rk R H AL FIR A () 35,528 (23,552)
FE M R 58 I (109,198) (36,833)
FER BRE A B B 5 BE 2R n (31,856) (7,588)
EEAERTE A 4,334 -
FEA R BEEH R HAFAEE I ( B ) 104,670 (43,740)
KB ESEFIRRBA - (1,129)
FARESER - BEMABRHE 293,039 121,143
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29, BB (&)

b N
Ro_BEZRF—~HF—H

- WRI&

~ bEEHE (KE2)

- BEFIIE
THERRESEEZRE
R R RE AR F|
BB ()

R_FEFFET_A=+—H
R SR PE A R

R_FEFE—F+_RA=+—H

B % | kM

(&)
BE_FEFE+ - A=+—HItFEE
[ 53

BiaE BHEEE EREE 5 EHF ok
FH#ET FHETT FHT FH#T FHEEIT FHETT
836,225 - - - 834 837,059
- - - - 40,933 40,933
836,225 - - - 41,767 877,992
67 - - - - 67
- - - - 2,986 2.986
_ _ - - (40,933) (40,933)
836,292 - - - 3,820 840,112
_ _ - - 61,974 61,974
836,292 - - - 65,794 902,086

FoEEFHCERBPRERABRLARFENBATLASECEEBREBFPRB L LE/HE

REBFE—F+_R=+—H  FRFHSGETREZMEFE 65,794,000 BTz Zit@F ( _FF

W 1 3,820,000 BT ) ©

30. KRB ZIELERIE

REEEB  REER ( RBE ) ZRERBEE ( &F) T

THEARELEREZRBEE

FEMARETREN ZRBER

ARz T E RS A
MEBHRERMBRZITE

TEH b /N
B —BEBRE —EH—f CRBERE
FET FHET FEIT FHET
4,553 889 3,764 493
(113) (165) (101) (154)
4,440 724 3,663 339
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Messmwss

(%)
BE_EEF+ A= —AIEE
29. &8
, 5k
R4 HE1E HEHE E S i ERHEF k]
FH#ET F#oT T FEET FH# T FH#T
*EH

R_EERF—FB—H
- WK 836,225 (169,047) 2,883 30,767 274,621 975,449
- LFERE (ME2) - - - - 40,933 40,933
- EHTIE 836,225 {169,047) 2,883 30,767 315,554 1,016,382
fTERBERELEBRE 67 - - - - 67
BEAEHR - (2,032) - - - (2,032)
MEWBATBE S HE - 408 - - - 408
HE (R BEEESE) - - - 33,788 (33,788) -
% 5 FE b - - - - 80,473 80,473
A (M) - - - - (40,933) (40,933)
RoERERE+A=+—8H 836,292 (170,671) 2,883 64,555 321,306 1,054,365
B T AR - 2,032 - - - 2,032
HEMBATBE > B2/ - 1,385 (191) - - 1,194
FEAS & B IR 5 R R - - - 3,505 (3,505) -
HE (MR BBERESE) - - - 24,876 (24,876) -
B B RE AR FI - - - - 140,006 140,006
RBFE—%+=A=+—0 836,292 (167,254) 2,692 92,936 432,931 1,197,597

TAIATREIEZ R
— FAFREMBRE 836,292 (160,130) 2,585 89,431 418,908 1,187,086
- BELT - - - - (290) (290)
- BBLE - (7,124) 107 3,505 14,313 10,801
836,292 (167,254) 2,692 92,936 432,931 1,197,597
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Mu®kwu

(#\)
BE-FEEFEFEAf = F=+—HIFEE
26. BB
BOEE AT
FHET
FREHE 010 BT @k
BE
R-BEFRE—HA—H  —_BEZE+-HA=+—H
kE_FE-f#£+_/A=+—H 1,500,000,000 150,000
EBETEERE
- RIBRRE—HA—-HZzE& 1,240,407,879 124,041
- fIEERIRHER (M 27) 39,400 4
R BEREE+_A=+—HHA
BB+ F=+—H 1,240,447,279 124,045

27. RRREE

RBEALFANR—AANFESTZZREEMRY  DEEAXFTFREFIZHREARF—F+HA=T
HEM o RERHEDREEREMIT  TEDREESEATERREE -

RBEFFRFT_A=T-HLFER  AAFZRREEREATESH 39,400 (32 EE
BB EER 1.80 AITRE 39,400 BALXFEEREME 0.10 #LZ EE K °

28. FERRARE

REBB-FTZA=T—R REBALFZBRUEETRBROMERTEZBRENT

RIZFE—&
+=-—RA=+—H
ITERR SRTEE MEITE
T
—EFFZEANBTEE
—BE=%FAA+AH 0.67 30,000,000
ZEFERFAA=FTABE
=RB=FAHAZ+tH 0.62 20,000,000
“ERFE_FRATRHEE
—EBMNER A=+<A 0.61 44,784,000
94784000

RAEER L MR T -
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23. SRITER

TR
HEHF
AR

Mg xuas

ZAPN T FIHARR (B8 2 $R 7 Bk

—ERNEIE R
=
ERE

B SIRIERE
Z A

—F BRI Z KR

24, BRERARZBESR

(&)
BE_FFFEf+ - f=+—HIFFEE

T HEE b NS
—FEH£ —EERE —BE—-£ —EETE
F#x FH#T FHT FHT
469,331 443,286 135,000 106,148
135,000 - 135,000 -
334,331 443,286 - 106,148
469,331 443,286 135,000 106,148

HEE v NS
—FE—F —ZEEEF —BE—F _EREF
FAT FH#T F&T Fi#T
303,501 311,634 22,491 53,074
88,948 131,652 44,982 53,074
76,882 - 67,527 -
469,331 443,286 135,000 106,148
(303,501) (311,634) (22,491) (53,074)
165,830 131,652 112,509 53,074

FHEFEEEAAZE - HERHEXDUBR —HETER - ARRKARTERENFFERR
BEGE SRR Sk BB 15,750,000 BT Z HEREHEGE 0 TARE 31,500,000 # L ERE H B B A

BMEH » FRMWE32 .

25, REERLRER

HIRS BN EER > BBEFRFEAL  BARSFRRFAAHEEERR -
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s rma
RE=BE—F+= A= —HILFE

(&)

20. BUESREREBIR

21.

22,

AEERAESEFRHKEOBE 120 B 2GR - BUEBERAZERHBIILT

H
—BE-§ —BREF
F#ET FHT
0F 90 B 163,153 162,975
91 F 180 B 22,656 66,154
181 F 365 B 8,617 45,020
194,426 274,149
A FE kR 98,510 71,436
292,936 345,585
B ERR
HEEZLEET ) FER47TEE 6435 E » AEBHER -
EME SREREBIRIE
FEMESEHRZEHSHOT -
A4
—ET-& —BERF
FET FHT
0ZF 90 H 188,512 72,908
91 % 180 H 28,032 47,108
181 % 365 H 9,238 10,813
365 ALk 24,123 23,377
249,905 154,206
At JE £ 35 105,244 109,962
355,149 264,168
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Muagxmsa

(#)
BE_EE FH— A=+—HILFEE
17. REBLEZRE
FEH
—EE-5 ~EEEE
FET FHT
S EESE 19,110 14,713

REFF—E+A=+t—0 ARESEWESEUEERAT ("R, ) EMRAZ S0% #E -
ERXB—FRPERIZHASERERT  RERERHEMER B ER

18. FEWER
W EERF > BEBX 6435 EFHE » AARTHIRARER :
AEME
—EF-% ~EFEERE
F#T FHET
—ERN 795 795
—FB 795 795
—ERE 2,245 2,385
AEH - 655
3,835 4,630
B 7 RMEEER—ER
Mz 3R (795) (795)
R—FE R ER KA 3,040 3,835
19. &
AEH

—BF—5 —EBEBEE
FH#ET FHT
JE 7 %t 41,853 36,751
EEA 56,560 51,453
BURR S 50,518 52,039
148,931 140,243

EFIEEEERE 9,005,000 BT ( ZHFEFE &) RERR 4749000 T ( —FRFE &)
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